The Web of Life

On February 26, 1855, the Dubuqgue Literary
Institute met to hear Lucius H. Langworthy deliver
his second lecture on the history of Dubuque.
“Our prosperity seems to point to a glorious fu-
ture,” the pioneer declared. “Our progress has
been steady, and the importance of our location IS
now settled beyond a question. . . . The fact,
that eleven churches and a number of schools, be-
sides literary and scientific socleties, are sustained
by our citizens, indicates we can already offer to
Immigrants the advantages of older cities, and that
we have all the social and Intellectual resources of
the Atlantic States.” Through “seminaries of
learning” and “literary institutions,” Langworthy
concluded, Dubuque was destined to become the
very “Athens of the West.”

The Dubugue pioneers might look back with
pride at their progress since they first entered the
Black Hawk Purchase in 1833. Religious, educa-
tional, social, and cultural attainments had kept
pace with the economic and political development.
These, together with the homespun amusements
and workaday activity, form the web of pioneer
life.

Religion was a powerful force In frontier Du-
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bugue. The Reverend Aratus Kent preached the
first Protestant sermon In Ezekiel Lockwood’s log
cabin on Locust Street during the summer of 1833,
In the folloming summer the Reverend Barton
Randle and his Methodist flock built a one-story
log church measuring twenty by twenty-six feet
and costing $255. Seven women and five men
made up the membership of this, the first church In
lowa. Five preachers faithfully ministered to this
congregation before a new and larger structure
was erected In 1840. During this time the Metho-
dist Church was used by various denominations,
served as a courthouse and a schoolhouse, and
housed the meeting to consider the Incorporation
of the town of Dubugue — In a word, functioned
as a center of religion, education, and government.

Meanwnhile, Father Charles Felix VVan Quick-
enbourne conducted the first Roman Catholic serv-
Ice In the cabin of Mrs. Brophy during the summer
of 1833. On August 15, 1835, the cornerstone of
the first Catholic Church In lowa was laid at Du-
buque. Dedicated as Saint Raphael's Church by
Father Samuel Mazzuchelli, the handsome stone
edifice was destined to serve as the Cathedral for
the Territory of lowa when Bishop Mathias Loras
arrived on April 19, 1839,

There were many other faiths represented at the
Dubugue lead mines. On May 11, 1836, the Du-
buque Visitor declared that another ‘Minister of
the Gospel Is needed among us —one who can
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reason, preach, and sing; and enforce the fourth
Commandment.” As If In answer to this plea the
cornerstone of the first Presbyterian Church was
laid with appropriate ceremonies on July 18, 1836.
A Baptist congregation was organized In 1840,
the Episcopalians formed their first church in 1843,
and the Christian Church was established In the
following year. Before the decade closed begin-
nings had been made by the African Baptist
Church, the Unitarian Church, the Congregational
Church, and the Dubugue County Bible Society.

The Influence of the church was soon mani-
fested. On September 30, 1837, a writer In the
lowa News expressed delight with “the order and
decorum which prevails in every part of our com
munity” after the town trustees adopted the ordi-
nance relating to the observance of the Sabbath.
Both Protestant and Catholic congregations were
active In the temperance crusade. However, In
addition to unbelievers there were some wayward
brethren whose conduct was considered reprehen-
sible. ““I wish to notice a habit quite prevalent In
this city,” wrote one who signed his name “Chris-
tian” In the Miners' Express for February 23,
1848. “It Is that of going to church for the purpose
of taking a comfortable snooze during divine serv-
Ice. This miserable and sinful practice Is quite
fashionable and followed extensively by certain
ladies and gentlemen, especially some who attend
the Methodist and Congregational churches.”
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The Dubugue pioneers lost no time In establish-
Ing schools. The first schoolhouse In the Black
Hawk Purchase was completed at Dubuque In
December of 1833. Bald-headed George Cubbage
was selected as the first schoolmaster for the thir-
ty-five pupils who attended. Subsequently, Barrett
Whittemore and Mrs. Caroline Dexter taught
school at Dubuque. In 1836 Mrs. Louisa King
opened a school for young ladies. On January 15,
1838, the Legislative Assembly passed an act au-
thorizing a seminary of learning at Dubuque for
the “instruction of young persons of both sexes Iin
sclence and literature.” Thomas S. Wilson, Lucius
H. Langworthy, P. A Lorimier, Joseph T. Fales,
Benjamin Rupert, and Patrick Quigley were listed
as Incorporators. The first classical school in lowa
was established at Dubugue In 1839 by Thomas
H. Benton, Jr.

More schools sprang up during the following
decade. In the fall of 1841 the Miners EXpress
called attention to the English, classical, and math-
ematical school opened In the residence of Bishop
Mathias Loras. A few months later C. F. Hardie
started an “Evening School” In the basement of
the Presbyterian Church. Professor Hardie, em
phasizing particularly English, grammar, and
arithmetic, charged four dollars tuition for a
twelve-week term during which classes met four
nights a week. Each pupil was required to “fur-
nish his own light.” In 1842 Miss Eberlee opened
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a school for the instruction of children of both
sexes. Miss Eberlee taught English, French, and
German as well as needle and fancy work. These
were all private schools, for Dubugue had not used
the authority to establish free public schools. In
1844 a newly created school board agreed to pay
the costs of educating eligible children In the pri-
vate schools, but as late as 1849 there were no
public school buildings In the city.

In those formative years the schools were not
always of the best. On April 20, 1858, the Du-
bugue Daily Times recorded:

SCHOOL AT WEST DUBUQUE

The school at West Dubuque was obliged to be dis-
missed yesterday on account of the miserable condition of
the House In which 1t has been kept. This house Is the
head quarters of an immense colony of vermin, which have
multiplied to so great an extent as to fairly drive the
Teacher and pupils out of the House. The school will be
suspended for a few days until another house can be pro-
cured and arranged.

The dissemination of knowledge, however, was
not restricted to the schools. On December 27,
1837, a number of Dubugue citizens met at the
home of James L. Langworthy and formed a “Lit-
erary Assoclation” upon the lyceum principle.
Timely topics were discussed, the lyceum affording
an excellent opportunity for the development of
Individual forensic talent. Thus, on December 1,
1847, the Miners Express announced a meeting
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dover Terry’s Saloon” to discuss the question:
“Resolved that the Wilmot Proviso Is right and
ought to be sustained by the American people.”

Numerous lecturers appeared before Dubugue
audiences, temperance and education being two
popular themes. In September of 1838, Alonzo P.
Phelps spoke on “Popular Education” In the
Methodist Church. On November 3, 1843, the
Miners Express expressed delight with Professor
Bonneville’s very “convincing” lecture on mesmer-
ISm  The editor witnessed such experiments as
“paralyzing different limbs, shutting the eyes,
closing the mouth, putting the subject in a magnetic
state.” It was said of Professor Bonneville that he
could “stop a woman’s tongue by merely shaking
his finger at her.” Skeptics were urged to attend.
The large Irish population undoubtedly enjoyed
the lecture by Mr. Mooney, the “distinguished and
very popular Irish vocalist and lecturer” who ap-
peared In December of 1847. Mr. Spencer gave
exhibitions of “Animal Magnetism,” wnile Dir.
Reynolds lectured on “Astronomy’” over Terry’s
saloon. On May 3, 1848, the Miners Express
urged citizens to attend the “novel exhibition” by
Mrs. Hayden, who was hailed as the “American
Sybil” and the “first and only female magician In
the world.”

A welcome addition to the cultural life of Du-
buque was supplied by Joseph T. Fales who con-
ducted a singing school In the Methodist Church
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on the evening of May 25, 1836. In November,
1838, Azor Richardson taught the science of sa-
cred music In the Methodist Church. Mr. and
Miss Scott advertised In 1843 that they would be
pleased to Instruct students on the ‘Piano Forte,
and musical instruments generally// On Decem
ber 1, 1847/, the Miners Express announced a con-
cert by the Dubuque Philharmonic Society In the
Congregational Church. The programme included
anthems, solos, and choruses, together with the
“Most popular Glees and Secular” melodies. “The
members of the Soclety,” the Miners EXxpress de-
clared, “flatter themselves that their Concert will
afford an unusually agreeable evening’s entertain-
ment.” Bands and church choirs afforded a fur-
ther outlet for the musically inclined.

An Index of the reading tastes of the Dubuque
pioneers Is revealed by the books William Lawther
offered for sale in his store In 1842. In addition to
the Encyclopaedia Americana, Walkers Diction-
ary, and Comstock’s Mineralogy, he advertised
Biographies of the Signers of the Declaration of
Independence and Chitty’s works on Pleadings
and on Contracts. Goldsmith’s Animated Nature,
Lockhart’s Life of Scott, Defoe’s Robinson Crusoe,
Bunyan’s Pilgrim's Progress, Pope’s Essay on
Man, Milton’s Paradise Lost, Cobbett’s Advice to
Young Men, Butler’s Hudibras, and Wirt’s Life
of Patrick Henry were other volumes on sale.
Jane Porter’s two classics, Thaddeus of Warsaw
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“WAIT FOR THE WAGON F”

THE 40 HORSE WAGON !

1» W 1 make It* grand .ntw about 1* A M [*to C
lumbu« City. w«dnotd»y. Jul* 21; Wa#htDg«o i.Thur*«
t-y, July« 1OW * rtTY, FRIDAY JVr 2«: Tlptui
Saturday, Jaly 24; Muscatine, Monday, Ju.y 2f ****,

(Fyom fhelr New Vrieane Atnphl boater Cel wiulei.
end Wood's Theatre, Be Louie. this fcpring.)
ooBMtenro ruria

THREES OIRCUSSHS,

Cooeoli™ated loto one n“oiter concam ; tbelr

NORTH AMERICAN CIRCUS

80 celebrated Id New York and Ngpr Eogland ; heir

FLOATING  PALACE  CIBCIS,

From their Palatial Aquatic Amphitheatre oo the
MltelMippl and bio liter* ; and tbelr

RAILROAD CIRCUS,

Which »setted each a eeosalion Iqgthe Middle 8taUe
end Caaade. All under tbe ne”aoual direction o
Mr, 0. J. BOOK**.

A Princely Retinue,
*N109 Persons ! 113 Horses

(Ady other Circus would call 1t 50 pereoue aod ho*eee.)

The largest traveling Show Idthe world I Ad «the only
Company that perform* everything In the Bllle.

Three Sets of Performer*.

Fmknclng tbe elite of French. English, Spanish and
American Rulers. Acro> ate. Gymnast#, Yoltigeurs.
Equilibrists, Callvtheniste, Ac.,in friendly strife
before the audlonca.

THREE SETS OF CLOWNS.

Josier, Grotesque and Comic Oymnaet;

Three Sets of Ring Horses !

Pad, Entree, Dancing, Trick and War*

Pantomimce every Afternoon,

SPECTACLE EVERY EVENING.

ill under ode tout, and all for only Fifty Cente; Cbl «
«roc and bcnrPDia half prlco Abjut iu A. M, at ovur>
AUccof exhibition,

ke Rose Excelsior Brass Band.

Will 1» draan to triumphal procoMlon through Ib*
principal nuoU. to a Leviathan Chariot, by

40 Horses Driven by one Man!

Ibe modern Jehu, Majoi i Ka*m, compared alth
ebicu ail otbor bi™ Uaxn# aro uut acrvil® luiiLa*
tious id tbe Duuibrr » tbr butane and tbe
ekill ul the rein«m«o.

Tbe famous wire sscenslonaet, M DLLE ANNA
CHURCH,will

Trundle a Wheelbarrow to the Sky !

Cp a halMochb « Ire, extended at ditty height Crumtb
ground, onulde fbe teni.to tb. tup ut tbe lofty centre
pule, every noon,Jo«t before opening tbe doure uf tb
virtue. *ben.ver tbo leather U f.Tuiable. and mill tak.-
up aitli her on tbit eluglo track Hallraad, In her u®ig”e
vehicle, any laty wulghine n* nr 1+0 pounds.

MAHR wuA |l a> AiI*rtAY u* rf AES.

Littlo Kate Ormond, Henry Magtiton,
¢i 11 Anua Church, Frank Barry,

¢lad. F. Ui moud, Bhly Fay,

Mia. A. Beckwuh, 1 hr Jda>* Monkey,
signor Jute D. Ytlienueva, George Dunbar,
«Xonc bfgrolt, U rtu««o Libby,
F.?. Licrvto, The Mutely Brother,
C. J. Hog« ra, H halbe lem,
George Artber, 0. Waltere,

J< bu Barry, D«vid Heed,

J. BlcKarlacd, Mactei Charlie,
Bill « Boyu, Autoi.abtck Ib,

Henry auotbi, Goorgu Char Ire,

e» i Muod, Joe Cook,
William Moccley, K. Dealing,

And «boee quadrupedal celebiltiee.
DUCKPHA LUS, ABIVTOOK, 1 KLEORAPU,
PLGAbUa, Blv T/IUNDER, VU.DFihK,

Al ogelhor, the mutt extraordinary comiduntluo ol
(Tr«u- urifurmere end j>* foiming burtea ever concem-
ulated I.* Lurupror America.

The** three cutnpanlee will positively not be separated
Ht an> t»me this ee.eon, oncer any pr« text wh«tev*r.-—
The floating Palace 1. U d up at <alro fur he enmuier ;
and the car» *f tho Rat«road Cl*ro« are owitched uff a
Cincinnati—expre”ly that the performer* and hon»t* of
ihoee fwwu companic« might boadded to tho North Amer-
ican Circus

JOHN aNPERSON, Asent FloaMng Palace Circus.

EPHRAIM WHI1TR, Agent R*tlro*d Circus,

P. WILI0OX, Agent North Ataerh an Circus

J. A. DINGESS, tven’l Agent.

On September 5, 1838, the American Arena Comi)_any, owned and operated
|

l%/ Miller, Yale, and Howes, brought their “trave
u

ng world of wonaders" to

buque. From that day on, scarcely a year went by but what several
such companies adwvertised their forthcoming appeararice, always with a
great fanfare and extravagant praise, such as recorded above.
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and Scottish Chiefs, must have vied with the works
of Shakespeare, Scott, and Byron for public favor.
Among the school books listed were Smith's Arith-
metic, Murry's Grammar, and a series of “Elemen-
tary Spellings Books and Eclectic Readers.” Sure-
ly the most fastidious reader could have found
something to suit his taste on William Lawther's
well-stocked shelves.

The pioneers found time for fun and entertain-
ment. In 1838 the lowa Thespians organized, and
Joseph Jefferson appeared the following year with
his professional actors. Steamboat excursions
were popular; dog and animal shows, tight rope
walkers, sleight-of-hand artists, and colorful circus
performers helped to enliven frontier life. Prob-
ably most of the men and boys indulged In fishing
and hunting. Skating and sleighriding were popu-
lar winter sports. One might suppose that in those
good old “horse and buggy days" there would be
no need for care with the means of transportation
then In vogue. But this was not entirely true. A
by no means uncommon event was recorded In the
Dubugue Weekly Times of December 20, 1860:

Sleigh Riding is pleasant enough when every thing goes
right, but occasionally an incident will transpire, which
Interferes materially with the enjoyment of such recrea-
tion. For instance, Prof. Baylies was riding Saturday
afternoon In company with a couple of ladies. Coming
from Locust to Main Street on Seventh his sleigh struck a
stone, just as he was turning down Main, and tipped over,
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Comer of Main and Third Street,
DUBUQUE, IOWA.

DIRECTORS.
How. Geo. W. Joses, Gen. Warner Lijwis,
Wm. Vandeveb, J ames M. Redmond,

“  Lincoln Clare, Asa lloRn, M. D.,
L. D. Randall, MI&A let,
E dward Langwortht, ; %braves,
1. A. Wilts*, H. A Littleton,
Ceo. L. Tobbert, A. Baylies.

The Course of lustrnctlon In this Institution Is acknow!
edged on all Lands to be the most extensive, thorough, practl
cal and modem to bo found, and every precaution Is taken tha
for the acquisition of a business education, complete in all Its
particulars, it shall, as heretofore, have yonilizehj no equal.

The student will receive the most thorough instruction Id,
and become fully posted as to, thb manner of conducting on
scientific and correct principles, the books pertaining to all
kinds of business, from the most simple transaction to the most
ntricate and complicated business, including Commission,
_Comgoundund Joint Stock Companies, Steanibonting, Bank-
ing, Railroading, etc., etc., realizing and perfecting the ac-
complished Accountant. Also instructions from competent
Musters in Penmanship, Commercial Calculations and Cor-
respondence, detecting counterfeit notes, nnd much other im-
portent information. Daily Lectures given before the College
on the Science of Accounts, Business Customs, and, during
the season regular stated lectures on Commercial Law, Bonk-
ing and Finance, Gorrnnercial Ethics, Political Economy, etc.

For fulor and more complete information, see our now de-
scriFtive pamphlet circular, which will be furnished free to all
applicants» . A. BAYLIES.

Sept. 25/60. <lawly(86S

Founded in Dubuqgue in 1858 by A. Baylies, the institution was Incor-
porated in 1859 as Baylies Commercial College. As early as 1830 it
claimed to be the *“oldest school of the kind In lowa.” ‘A cousin of
the founder, C. Baylies, came to Dubugue In 1862 and took over the
school following the death of Prof. A Baylies in Boston on August 2,
1863.. In 1964 Baylies Business College advertised with no little pride
that it was “The” Oldest Business School West of the Mississippi.”
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spilling the trio quite unharmed upon the ground. The
horses, however, which were a pair of colts belonging to
Hannum, took the matter in high dudgeon, and finding
themselves without a driver, dashed down the street at a
furious rate, colliding with two other teams, which also
started off at full speed. General confusion ensued. Han-
num’s horses became detached from the sleigh at \Wood-
worth’ corner, and then ran around the square to the barn
where they belong. The other two establishments went
down the street below Second and are still going for
aught we know.

At home or In church, In lyceum or at militia
muster, at choir practice or fire drill, at the circus
or less spectacular sideshows and carnivals, the
Dubuque pioneers found both pleasure and profit
prior to the Civil War.





